RESPONSES TO DRFP QUESTIONS

LASER SYSTEM ENGINEERING SERVICES

NNG09266079J

1) Is it NASA’s intent to issue a single contract to a prime for performance of all activities related to the design, development, build and test of the laser systems or will NASA be issuing separate task orders for each of these divisions?

RESPONSE: As stated in section L.5 of the RFP, the Government contemplates the award of a Cost-Plus-Award-Fee (CPAF) Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) contract resulting from this solicitation. The award will be made to a single prime contractor. All the work required under the resulting contract will be issued as a separate task order as determined by the COTR. 
2) Reference: Section L.15 2(b) Government Pricing Model, Exhibit 1A Bid Rates

The cost instructions state that if a composite rate is comprised of 2 labor categories, the composite rate shall not contain any labor category with less than 40% of anticipated effort, and if a composite rate is comprised of 3 or more labor categories the composite rate shall not contain any labor category with less than 30% of anticipated effort.  

Do the minimum labor category percentages apply to the Offeror's direct labor categories that comprise the Contract direct labor categories reflected in Exhibits 2A - 2C, or do the percentages represent minimum content to be proposed by each team member in Exhibit 1A? 

RESPONSE: The revised section L uploaded on February 13, 2009 eliminated this requirement/restriction from L.17 Cost Volume.

3) Reference: Section L.15 2(b) Government Pricing Model, Exhibit 1A Bid Rates

Are Offerors precluded from utilizing 4 or more labor categories in a composite since there exists a 30% minimum content requirement as stated in the instructions?

RESPONSE: The revised section L uploaded on February 13, 2009 eliminated this requirement/restriction from L.17, Cost Volume.

4) Reference: Section L.15 2(b) Government Pricing Model, Exhibit 1A Government Estimated Hours

Are the estimated hours the total anticipated contract level of effort over the five year period of performance, or are the estimated hours the total anticipated contract level of effort for one contract year?

RESPONSE: As stated in Section L.17 uploaded on February 13, 2009:
“The hours provided under the Government Pricing Model are for estimating purposes only. On-site, Off-site and Manufacturing hours will be determined at the task order level.”
5) Reference: Section L.15 2(b) Government Pricing Model, ODC Non-Proposed Costs

Will all material be provided as GFE to the contractor?  If not, will the Government provide a material plug number for inclusion in the Government Pricing Model?

RESPONSE: Exhibit 1 uploaded on February 13, 2009, provides the material non-proposed costs for the Government Pricing Model.
6) Reference: Section L.14 3. Subfactor D (a) Small Business Subcontracting (7), Exhibit 13

May Offerors include a line in Exhibit 13 for Subcontractors which are classified under the designated NAICS code as Small Business Concerns (SB) and which may not be classified as SDB, WOSB, HBCU, HBZ, VOSB or SDVOSB?  

RESPONSE: Subcontractors that are classified under the designated NAICS code as Small Business shall be included in the last row of Exhibit 13 titled Total Small Business Subcontracting.  

7) Reference: Section L.15 2(a) Direct Labor and Indirect Rates Matrix, Attachment B 2. Prime Indirect Cost Rate Matrix

The instructions state that the offeror’s proposed indirect rates are not-to-exceed bid rates.  Will the Government allow the not-to-exceed ceilings to be applied in the aggregate, derived by the application of all of the ceilings to the appropriate bases?  Can Offerors propose an aggregate ceiling that caps the overall wrap to a certain factor but does not cap the individual pools, thereby giving the contractor the freedom to manage risks in this fashion while still providing ceilings on cost growth?  

RESPONSE: This solicitation does not request not-to-exceed ceiling rates.

8)  RTO#2 mentions construction and verification of initial prototypes that is not covered under either RTO #1 or #2. Would these prototypes be built and tested by GSFC, or can we anticipate that additional RTOs will be provided to the funded contractor to cover these activities? 

RESPONSE: The prototypes will be built and tested at GSFC.  The funded contractors are expected to shadow the Gov’t team during this build process.  Additional task orders will be issued to cover these activities.


9)  The RTOs specify a volume of 0.02 cubic meters. Please confirm the length x width x height dimensions so that more accurate risk and cost assessments can be made. 

RESPONSE: The nominal dimension that’s relevant to RTO2 is already shown in Table 2 of RTO2.  The question is not relevant to RTO1, the design for RTO1 is the contractor’s design and we do not want to constraint the dimensions, as long as it keeps within the 0.02 m3 volume.
10)  RTO #2 has a period of performance of 9 months, but the first deliverable (two space flight lasers) is requested 22 weeks after task approval. Please clarify the timing of this deliverable. 

RESPONSE: The revised RTOs (Exhibit 15) uploaded on February 13, 2009 revised the deliverable due date to match  the period of performance. 

11) The draft RFP gives the following page limits: section L.12, b. 1 table shows 50 page limit for basis of estimates, while section L.12. b. 3 shows a 75 page limit for basis of estimates. Which limit should we use?
RESPONSE: The revised section L uploaded on February 13, 2009 revised the basis of estimate page limit to 3 pages per RTO.
12) Could you clarify this statement (L.14.2.3)? There is no WBS inside the Attachment A SOW.
“The Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) contained in the SOW, Attachment A,  of this solicitation shall be contained to the first WBS level (for example Function 1) to structure the Mission Suitability Proposal for each of the Subfactors”
RESPONSE: The revised section L uploaded on February 13, 2009 eliminated this sentence from L.16 Mission Suitability Instructions – Competitive.
13) RFP Section B.2 – Estimated Cost and Award Fee – Base fee is included at $0.  Inclusion of base fee in a resulting contract would ensure contractors at least a minimal return on any contract effort allowing for some recoupment of any associated unallowable cost (if applicable) and help to ensure a return commensurate with program risk.  Will NASA consider the inclusion of base fee in an Offeror’s proposal?

RESPONSE: GSFC does not award base fee for services contracts.
14) Would NASA consider a proposal due date of 45 days after release of the final RFP?

RESPONSE: The proposal due date is March 16, 2009. GSFC reserves the right to revise the proposal due date, if necessary, at a later time.  
15) RFP Section M.4 – Cost Evaluation Factor, page 129, Representative Task Order (RTO) section.  We interpret the guidance provided in this paragraph to mean that an overall (both RTOs combined) cost realism analysis will be performed and submitted to the SSA, however the probable cost for each individual RTO will not be evaluated and considered in the source selection.  Is this interpretation correct?
RESPONSE: The revised section M uploaded on February 13, 2009 revised this sentence as follows:
“The Government will evaluate the proposed skill mix and staffing levels for each RTO.  This assessment will be used under the Mission Suitability Factor for purposes of assigning strengths and weaknesses.  The Government is not requesting nor evaluating any proposed or probable cost related to the RTOs.”

16) Several of the DRFP “Exhibits” contain the terms “on-site” and “off-site” (in addition to “manufacturing”).  For the purposes of proposal preparation, how exactly should these categories be defined and distinguished from each other and what should be included in each category?

RESPONSE:  The term “on-site” refers to work performed at GSFC; the term “off-site” refers to work performed at the prime or subcontractor’s facility; the term “manufacturing” refers to work performed at the prime or subcontractor’s manufacturing facilities.

//signed//__________
     Nylsevalis Ortiz-Collazo                                                        February 20, 2009
          Contracting Officer
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